Questions – Answers 
regarding invitation to tender ECFIN/R5/2012/001
Provision of communication activities
Question 1 : My question is if there is some database/information about past tenderers or access to EoI of potential tenderers or something else to which we could contact to offer them our contribution as subcontractors or other agreements. 
The reason is that the TED interests us: we have successful experience and achievements but we are small for this kind of contract.

Answer: 

Thank you for the interest shown. Unfortunately, for reasons of privacy and full transparency regarding the ongoing tender procedure, the Commission cannot disclose information about potential candidates. We can however direct you to the Commission's general database on funds managed by EU in the previous years: http://ec.europa.eu/beneficiaries/fts/find_en.htm.
We would also like to take the opportunity to remind you that interested candidates can also send in an offer for a particular lot.
Question 2 : "Lot 1 Case Study 4 
The case study indicates that the "tenderers must: - describe in detail how they would undertake this case study..." Our understanding is that we don't have to provide an analysis and a social media strategy but our approach to conducting the analysis and preparation of the strategy. Could you please confirm if our understanding is correct?
Answer:
Yes, this understanding is correct.
Question 3: Lot 1 – Case study 4 (page 31) 
It is referred to “DG ECFIN’s overall communication strategy”.  
Is this publicly available? If yes, can the link to such a document be communicated to Tenderers?
Answer: 

The DG ECFIN's overall communication strategy is contained in the 2012 Management Plan on pages 53 to 55, which can be found on http://ec.europa.eu/atwork/synthesis/amp/doc/ecfin_mp.pdf.
Question 4:  Lot 1 - Case Study 3
It is requested to propose the “detailed content” of the subsite. Can the Commission be more specific about what is required?

Answer: 

As indicated, for more information on the detailed content, tenderers are invited to visit the relevant section on the current website and to propose what they would do for this section in accordance with our requirements described in the 2nd paragraph of Case study no.3.
Question 5:  Lot 1 - Case Study 3
Given the fact that the budget can vary considerably according to what the tenderer proposes (notably regarding the interactive tools), is there a budget limit for the Case study cost breakdown ?

Answer: 

There is no budget limit per case study. Full details on the financial value of the offers can be found under point 5, section Case studies and point 11.3. of Part 1 General Technical specifications and item B) of point 1.5 of Annex I 'Technical specification Lot 1".
Question 6 : General price schedule
2 staff categories: Technical writer and Technical editor. Can the Commission give a description of these two positions in terms of responsibilities and expertise?

Answer:

The responsibilities of a technical editor are more than just writing, but making editorial decisions about content.
New!!! Updated on 16 May
Question 7: Capítulo 3: Cuadro general de precios. No nos queda claro si tenemos que rellenar el cuadro general de precios para Copenhague únicamente ó para las 3 exposiciones (Copenhague, Frankfurt y Reykjavik).

Free translation into EN: Chapter 3: General list of prices. We do not understand if we have to fill in the prices only for the expo of Copenhagen or for the 3 expos (Copenhagen, Frankfurt and Reykjavik) 
Answer: 

Please see page 38 of tender specifications. The tenderers are asked to provide two cost estimates for lot 2: a cost estimate for the complete case study (covering all three venues), as well as a cost estimate for Copenhagen separately. 
Question 8:  Acuerdo Multilateral (página 17). ¿Hay que ratificar de alguna manera ó con algún documento el acuerdo multilateral sobre contratación pública en el marco de la OMC?
Free translation into EN: Multilateral agreement (page 17): Do we have to ratify the multilateral agreement on Government Procurement concluded within the WTC? How do we do this? Is there a document for it?
Answer:
Participation in tendering procedures is open on equal terms to all natural and legal persons falling within the scope of the Treaties (this includes all economic operators registered in the EU and all EU citizens). Participation is also open to all natural and legal persons in any non-EU country which has an agreement with the European Union in the field of public procurement on the conditions laid down in that agreement. Therefore, if you come from a EU Member state, you are eligible to participate in this tender, however, if you come from a non-EU Member state, you have to check if your country has ratified the Multilateral Agreement on Government Procurement concluded within the World Trade Organisation. 

Question 9: Necesitaríamos que nos enviaran el "Libro de estilo interinstitucional"

Free translation into EN: We would need you to send us the "Interinstitutional Style Guide"
Answer: 

Please see page 33 of the specifications "For further information, the Interinstitutional Style Guide can be found at http://publications.europa.eu/code/en/en-000100.htm and the list of languages is available at http://publications.europa.eu/code/pdf/370000en.htm.
Question 10: ¿A qué llaman stand sombrilla y stand portátil? hemos visto el croquis y la foto de ejemplo de la Exposición itinerante del Euro que aparece en:

http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/focuson/travelling_exhibition/focuson9122_en.htm
¿Es éste un stand sombrilla?
Free translation into EN: What is an umbrella stand and what is a portable stand? We've seen the design and picture of the Euro Expo at http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/focuson/travelling_exhibition/focuson9122_en.htm. Is this an umbrella stand?
Answer: 

Different terms are used to describe an umbrella stand. It is also know as C34 stand; Pop-Up Stand or Nomadic Stand.
Portable stand is the same as Roll-up Stand. 
Tenderers are invited to check on Google or similar search engines the images of how these stands look like. 
Question 11: ¿Es necesario que en nuestra propuesta especifiquemos la elección de la sala de exposición? ó es algo que se decidirá más adelante? 

Free translation into EN: Do we have to specify the chosen exposition room in our proposal? Or will this be decided at a later stage?
Answer: 

If this question refers to the case study, then the answer is NO, you do not need to specify the chosen exposition room.
Question 12: General price schedule
Can the Commission explain the difference between the position of “technical editor” and the one of “editor” in terms of both expertise and responsibilities?
Answer: 
The responsibilities of a technical editor and of an editor are the same as both make editorial decisions about content. The difference between them is that a technical editor deals with technical content and technical writing, while an editor deals with journalistic content and writing.
Question 13: Auf Seite 16 im ersten Satz beziehen Sie sich auf ein Muster des Preisverzeichnisses in Anhang I Kapitel 3. In der PDF Datei ist aber  kein Kapitel 3 zu finden.  Ich habe nur Kapitel 2 ( die Preistabelle als Exceldatei). Können sie mir da weiterhelfen?
Free translation into EN: On page 16, in the first sentence you refer to a sample of the price list in annex I chapter 3. But in the pdf there is no chapter 3, so can you help please?
Answer: 
The general price lists for all 4 lots may be downloaded in excel format from the website, from which the complete tender documentation may be downloaded: http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/procurement_grants/procurement/calls_for_tender/callfortenders-2012_r5_001_en.htm 
You may find the lists by clicking on "General price schedule for lot …" (in excel format).
Question 14: Are there any further information about the promotional material? For example Pictures or more detailed information?

Answer: 

Please be reminded that each time the Commission envisages placing an order, it will do so under the principle of reopening of competition (quality and price) among those contractors who were awarded the framework contract for promotional material. Consequently, the technical specifications / design of the promotional material will each time be specified in the request for an offer. The specific contract will then be awarded according to the best value for money principle.

In order to determine the award of the framework contracts, the Commission will evaluate (apart from the other award criteria: please see point 1.4. of Annex 1 for lot 4) whether candidates shall be able to provide all products listed in the general price schedule (product list). In addition, the products will also be rated on their attractiveness and suitability for the targeted public. Candidates should thus make sure that the products they offer represent the minimum requirements as described in the general price schedule/product list included in the tender specifications, complemented with the below clarifications.

In general, imprint shall consist of four colours.

 

Product 1.1:

What kind of imprint do you want (How many colours)? Four colours
Do you need any slots for example for Businesscards? No.

How many sheets should fit in it? The width of the spine shall be of 24mm – 12 mm on each side of the middle

 

Product 1.2:

- Which colour shall the pen have? It is up to the tenderer to choose the colour.
- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
 

Product 1.3:

-Do you ant a special Size for the Post it? Squarish 7x7.5

-How many Sheets should the pad have? 50

 

Product 1.5:

What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
 

Product 1.6:

What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
Product 1.7:

What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
 

Product 1.8:

Do you want us to offer only the Lanyard or also the nameplate? Only the lanyard
If we should offer the nameplate we need the size.

What kind of imprint (How many colours) shall we print on the Lanyard? Or should it be a woven Logo? You shall print on the Lanyard. As for the imprint, it's four colours.
What kind of material do you want (Nylon or Polyester)? Both are possible
 

Product: 2.3:

- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
 

Product: 2.6:

- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
- Do have more specifications (for example size) The length of a sharp pencil (about 20 cm)
 

Product: 3.1:

- Which colour shall the pen have? It is up to the tenderer to choose the colour.
- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
 

Product: 3.2:

- Which colour shall the pen have? It is up to the tenderer to choose the colour.
- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
 

Product: 3.3:

-  What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
 

Product: 3.4:

- Do you mean a Keychain? We mean a Key ring. As examples, please find enclosed pictures of the keyrings that were ordered by DG ECFIN in the last years. [image: image1.png]



- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
 

Product: 3.5:

- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Or should it be stitched? Then we need the size. It should not be stitched.
 

Product: 3.6:

- Which colour shall the mug have? It is up to the tenderer to choose the colour.
- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
- Shall the imprint be on both sides? or only on one side? Only on one side
- What about the shape? We want a regular mug, shape depends on your creativity.

 

Product: 3.7

- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Or should it be stitched? Then we need the size. It should not be stitched.
 

Product: 3.9:

- What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Or should it be stitched? Then we need the size. It should not be stitched.

- What colur shoul the shirt be? It is up to the tenderer to choose the colour.
 

Product: 3.10:

- What Size do you want it to be and what size is the Logo? To give the best price we need the Logo for the calculation. Size of a small plexi bloc with one coin: 8x5x2.5 with the Commission logo in four colours.

Product: 3.11:

-  Any further specifications about size or function? Clock should indicate time and date. Size should be adequate for a table ("table clock"). It then depends on your creativity.
 

Product: 3.12 and 3.13:

What kind of imprint (How many colours)? Four colours
Question 15 Lot 1: Regarding the references for the eight relevant projects, where the project was implemented over a period partly prior to the four years before the issue of this call to tender and for a period afterwards, will the references be treated as valid?

Answer:  

If the end dates of the services rendered fall within the four years prior to the issue of this call, the references are deemed to be valid. 
Question 16 
Please find below a set of questions regarding the Case study 1 for web subsite.
· The format of delivery should be in html format or in JPG format? 
     Answer: Both formats are accepted.
·  If in html: Shall we prepare the html templates based on the existent one http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/euro/index_en.htm . 
    Answer: There is no specific template other than the requirements listed in the case study. 

· Can we use absolute links in order to retrieve the existent styles or shall we create the html templates from scratch (e.g. http://demo.intrasoft.be/research/ecfin/case-studies1/html/economy_finance/euro/index_en.htm ; http://demo.intrasoft.be/research/ecfin/case-studies1/html/economy_finance/euro/index_fr.htm )? 
    Answer: It is fine to use absolute links.
Question 17 General price schedule – Lot 1
“Independent expert/consultant” 

Are we right in understanding that the term “independent” means that the persons that will fulfill this position should not be permanent staff of the tenderer?

If yes, is the tenderer expected to provide CVs for this position and if so for which area(s) of expertise? 

Answer:  
No, not necessarily. This will depend on the specific requirement for expertise which could make it necessary to hire an expert from outside the tenderer's staff. The areas of expertise may vary. There is no need to send in CVs at this stage. 

Question  18 Lot 1 – Case study No 1 (p.28)
It is stated that the subsite version must respect “the positioning of left hand side navigation”. 

Given that you talk specifically about “the positioning”, is it actually mandatory to have the ECFIN navigation?

Answer:  
Yes, the ECFIN navigation is mandatory.

Question 19 I have some questions about the lot 4, could you please clarify the following points?

· In the Chapter 2 Price list for lot 4, what is the multiplication factor? 
Answer: 
The multiplication factor is an indicative figure for the number of items DG ECFIN could order during one year. It is used to calculate the value of the tender for each lot. 

 It is estimated that 2/3 of the items will be ordered in high quantities and 1/3 in low quantities. The multiplication factor reflects this proportion.  Let's take as example the item: document folders. DG estimates, that it will order 2000 document folders in a year. The overall multiplication factor is hence 2000. 2/3 will be ordered in high quantities (1400), 1/3 in low quantities (600).

As mentioned under part Award criteria of Annex 1 for each lot, tenderers attention is drawn to the fact that the aim of the multiplication factors in the price schedule is only to establish the financial value of the tender which will be included in the final award formula. Consequently, the given numbers cannot under any circumstances be considered fixed and constitute a commitment on the part of the Commission to place specific orders for the respective services, and cannot give rise to any right or legitimate expectation on the part of the Contractors. The multiplication factor for different units in the Price list might be different. You may see the multiplication factor for each specific unit in the General Price schedule, in the column titled "multiplication factor".
· In the Chapter 2 Price list for lot 4, it is not always specified if the prices should include a printing, could you confirm? if yes, how many colors? 
Answer:

The price should be fixed for a finished product, ready to be distributed as promotional material. It includes printing in four colors.
· In the Chapter 2 Price list for lot 4, for the ‘bonbons’, could you confirm if you need a price per unit (1 sweet) or per kg? 
Answer:

We confirm we need a price per kg.

· For lot 4, in point 1.4. Award criteria, you ask a sample for the ‘notepads (Cat A – adults, items nr 1) this is not the same item as in the Chapter 2 price list: here you ask for a ‘document folder’. Could you please confirm which is the right item? 
Answer:

Thank you for notifying this. We confirm that we mean document folder.

· For lot 4, in point 1.4. Award criteria, you ask a sample for the ‘conference pen’ (Cat A – adults, item ref nr 3) and in the price list, the ‘ballpoint pen’ is the item nr 2, could you confirm this is right? 
Answer:

Yes, we confirm that 'conference pen' means 'ballpoint pen' and corresponds to item nr 2 (ballpoint pen) in the general price schedule.
· Is there any price indexing for the lot 4? Or will you always ask for a new quotation for each request? 
Answer:

Price indexing is not applicable for lot 4. Please be reminded that each time the Commission envisages placing an order, it will do so under the principle of reopening of competition (quality and price) among those contractors who were awarded the framework contract for lot 4 Promotional material, by asking for a specific quotation for each specific order. 
Question 20 Our team has a question regarding lot 3, case study no. 1 and 2 in the technical specifications. With regards to recent financial developments and political discussions as well as the recently rapid changing reality within the EU and EURO region on topics like the financial crisis, economical imbalances and the effects of the Euro on economically weaker EU countries, we would kindly like to ask:
1) Do you want to keep the messages:
case study 1: How the EU has been exiting the economic crisis and what does it mean for me?
case study 2: Why euro is beneficial to me and my country?
2) Do you want to keep the proposed countries to focus on:
case study 2: Germany, Greece and Poland?
Answer:  
Yes, the messages to be conveyed in the script and the story board stay the same: "How the EU has been exiting the economic crisis and what does it mean for me?" (for Case study No 1) and " Why euro is beneficial to me and my country?" (for Case study No 2). The objective of the Case study No 2 is to raise awareness and improve understanding of the benefits of euro focusing only on 3 countries: Germany, Greece and Poland. We confirm herewith our initial choice.
Question 21 We are trying to fill the documents for ECFIN /R5/2012/001. 
- But we cannot fill in the schedules, we cannot write down anything in there. How do we have to send the Quotation? 
Answer:  
Tenderers are asked to fill in the column titled Price per one unit of the General Price schedule with their offered price for each unit. The other columns of the general price schedule cannot be modified by the candidates, therefore they are protected. 
Tenderers are also reminded to present their offers both on paper and in electronic version (in a CD or memory stick) – see part I, point 11 of the tender specifications.

- In the Draft multiple framework service contract and its annexes for lot 4 you mention: Annex III – Contractor's Tender (No [complete] of [insert date])

I cannot find this. Please tell which document you mean. 
Answer:  
Draft multiple framework service contracts are included in the tender file for information only at this stage. They will be completed by DG ECFIN once the contract will be awarded to the winning tenderers (contractors). Annex III of the draft multiple framework contract Contractor's tender (no [complete] of [insert date] is the tender (or offer) of the winning tenderer (contractor), which will be included in the contract and will be a part of it. In the public procurement, the term "tenderer" is used for those interested parties, who which to participate in the procurement procedure by submitting an offer. The term "contractor" is used for those tenderers to which the contract is awarded.
 

- In the Checklists of documents to be supplied with reference to the eligibility, exclusion, selection and award criteria you say we have to give the Reference to enclosed documents (See document No ...on page ...of the tender submitted)  is this the same document like above? 
Answer:  
Tenderers are asked to complete the Annex VI Checklist to tender specifications, in order to ease the reading of their offers by the evaluators (as it would give the summary of where in their offer, the specific information may be found). Please use the table in Annex VI Checklist, fill it in with the relevant page numbers or document numbers of your tender and add it to your offer.
 

Question 22  Lot 1. Is the implementation with flex/flash obligatory or can the tenderer propose a different technology for case study 3?

Answer:  

According to the tender specifications, Flex/Flash should be used as the indicative technology; this means that the Commission has an understanding of what is achievable, and also aids comparability between offers. However, it should be noted that the contractor does not have to produce a working solution based on this technology, but only a technical approach to producing this solution.

Question 23  In riferimento al bando di gara n. ECFIN/R5/2012/001 Fornitura di attività di comunicazione, si richiedono i seguenti chiarimenti: nell’allegato I Specifiche tecniche Lotto 4 – Materiale promozionale, si fa esplicito riferimento all’invio di campioni dei prodotti promozionali selezionati dall’elenco prodotti (capitolo 2), che comprovino la capacità tecnica del contraente di creare, stampare, incidere e ricamare. In riferimento alla modalità di presentazione dell’offerta, il bando di gara esplicita che questa  deve essere presentata in busta chiusa, contenuta in una seconda busta

anch'essa chiusa. Nella busta interna devono essere inserite due buste chiuse, contenenti rispettivamente le specifiche tecniche e l'offerta finanziaria. 

· A tal proposito, i campioni come vanno spediti? Tutta l’offerta va inclusa in un unico pacco, contenete anche i campioni? Oppure, è possibile allegare il pacco contenente i campione alla busta dell’offerta?
· Nell’allegato I specifiche tecniche Lotto 4, “ imballaggio del prodotto” si richiede una confezione regalo per i prodotti della categoria B.  Nella confezione bisogna includere il gadget o è sufficiente l’imballaggio?

Free translation into EN:
With reference to the call for tender n ECFIN/R5/2012/001 Provision of communication activities, the following clarifications are requested:

In Annex I specifications Lot 4 Promotional material there is explicit mention to the dispatch of samples of promotional material from the list of products (chapter 2), in order to prove the tenderer's technical capacity to create, print, engrave and emboss.  With reference to the submission modalities of the offer the call for tender indicates that the tenders must be placed inside two sealed envelopes. The inner envelope must also contain two sealed envelopes, one containing the technical specifications and the other the financial bid.

· With reference to these modalities, how should the samples be submitted? The entire offer should be all included in one package containing also the samples? Or it is possible to submit a second package containing the samples, together with the envelopes containing the offer?
Answer:  
The entire offer should be submitted in one double package, the inner package must also contain two separate sealed envelopes: one for financial bid, the other for technical specifications of the offer. The samples should be included in the envelope containing technical specifications of the offer. If it is easier for logistical reasons, tenderers may put the samples in the separate envelope and put that envelope in the envelope of technical specifications. Tenderers are requested to make sure that the financial bids are kept separately from the technical envelope(s).

· In the Annex I specifications Lot 4 "Packaging of the product" an individual gift packaging for the items of category B is requested. In the offer should also the items be included or just the gift packaging is enough? 

Answer:  

The tenderer is required to suggest an individual packaging for 7 items of category B, clearly describe it and to support its description by a sample (see point 1.4. Award criteria of Annex 1 for lot 4 of tender specifications).

In principle, the gift packaging sample shall be enough. If the candidate is of the opinion that the presentation of the gift packaging would be more meaningful with the item included, he is welcome to present it together. 

New!!! Updated on 22 May

Question 24  In regard to the tender of the Directorate General for Economic and Financial Affairs (ECFIN/R5/2012/001) LOT 2, please find our remarks and questions below: 
1) Regarding the excel file for the price list: We believe the formula for cell F99 is incorrect, because cell C116 is doubled.  

Answer:  Thank you for notifying this. We have corrected the error and the updated general price schedule for lot 2 has been published online.
2) Where in the price list are positions for the actual coordination and organisation of the event, i.e. in the project management with the client, with the venues and service providers in the target countries etc.? Is it position 1.1. („Evaluation of different meetings, feasibility study of projects, technical meeting with stakeholders and similar tasks”)? And how shall the „attendance of site inspections and onsite attendance“  be depicted in the calculation? As well under position 1.1.? 

Answer:  
As mentioned in the tender specifications, page 5, the unit prices in the general price schedule must include all costs associated with provision of the services, including all aspects of coordination of the contract, project management (including costs of contract manager, project manager, project leader etc), coordination with the various parties involved, working meetings (kick-off and up to 3 progress meetings, including travel and accommodation costs, if needed), planning, monitoring and reporting, training of the Contractor's staff, overheads, insurance, telecommunications etc incurred directly or indirectly by the Contractor in performance of the tasks entrusted to him. The aforementioned associated costs will therefore not be defined separately in the General price schedule.

It is therefore up to the tenderer to decide how he would include these costs in the unit prices included in the General price schedule.

3) On page 38 of the specifications you state that “Tenderers also have to establish a price estimate (cost breakdown) for the case study. Further below it says “In addition, a separate price estimate for Copenhagen must be provided.” Is our assumption correct to budget firstly the requested requirements for the “hard-ware” of the exhibition (panels, umbrella stand, brochures, translation and storage), and in addition, the running of the exhibition in Copenhagen only (e.g. set up of the exhibition, running and dismantling), but without an transport from the previous stop or to the next stop of the exhibition?

Answer:  No, this is not entirely correct. Please re-consult pages 38-39 of our tender specifications. In particular, please note that the case study concerns a travelling exhibition in three countries. 
The tenderers are asked to provide two cost estimates for lot 2: 
A first cost estimate for the exhibition travelling in the three countries (covering all the costs as described under 'requirements' and 'tenders must')
A second cost estimate for the exhibition travelling to/from one country - Copenhagen, Denmark (covering all the costs as described under 'requirements' and 'tenders must')
4) Being aware of the fact that the case study is entirely ficticious, we would nevertheless like to ask whether we can suggest our ideas on the content of the existing exhibition, or if we have to develop a completely new exhibition proposal?

Answer:  Tenderers are invited to carefully read the case study (see Chapter 2 of Annex 1 for lot 2) and what exactly is requested to do. There is a list of tasks for which the tenderers must explain their proposed approach how to organize and manage them. Therefore tenderers do not have to develop a completely new exhibition proposal, but they are invited to use their ideas for the creation of a graphic and editorial part of the two products (umbrella stand in English – EU map and portable stand on Germany).
5) Do the A5/ A 4 brochures already exist, or do we have to create, design and layout new brochures?

Answer:  For this case study, tenderers do not have to create, design and layout new brochures. However, they have to explain their proposed approach how they would organize the update of 30% of the content and graphic design of both brochures (and include the costs of these tasks into the cost breakdown).
6) Is there any master text in English being provided by DG ECFIN for the panels and brochures? If yes, do we translate the master into the relevant languages? 

Answer:  For this case study, there is no master text provided by DG ECFIN, as tenderers do not have to translate the master text for the panels and brochures into the relevant languages. However, they have to explain their proposed approach how they would organize the translation (and include the costs of these tasks into the cost breakdown).
7) Regarding the 30% content and graphic design update: Will the tenderer have to create the 30% new content, or will we simply adapt 30% content provided by DGECFIN?

Answer:  For this case study, DG ECFIN is not providing the content and tenderers have to explain how they would organize the creation (editing) of the 30 % new content and graphic design of the panels and both brochures (and include the costs of these tasks into the cost breakdown).
8) How many brochures (A5/A4) need to be produced per stop? 

Answer:  For this case study, only one (1) A5 and one (1) A4 brochure need to be produced per stop.
9) What is the difference between a portable stand and an umbrella stand? What is their recommended size (in square meters)?

Answer:  Different terms are used to describe an umbrella stand. It is also known as C34 stand; Pop-Up Stand or Nomadic Stand. The standard size of an umbrella stand is 3.2 m x 2.4 m. Portable stand is the same as Roll-up Stand. The standard size of a portable stand is 0.8m x 2.10 m. Tenderers are invited to check on Google or similar search engines the images of how these stands look like. 
Question 25  Selon les procédures de passation de marché publics dans une procédure de type ouverte, le délai minimal de réception d’une offre suite à la publication d’un avis est de 52 jours. Sauf erreur de ma part, la publication de l’avis  de marché dans le JOUE est datée du 26/04/2012. À moins donc qu’un avis de préinformation ait été publié (auquel cas ce délai peut être réduit), la date de remise de l’offre devrait être le 18/06/2012 au plus tôt. Puis-je vous demander si mon raisonnement est correct ?
Free translation into EN: Following the public procurement rules for Open procedure, the minimum deadline for submission of the offers following the publication of a contract notice is 52 days. Unless an error from our side, the publication of the contract notice in the OJ was dated 26/04/2012.  Except in case a pre-information notice was published (in which case the deadline may be reduced), the deadline for the submission of the offers should be 18/06/2012 at the soonest. May I ask if my reasoning is correct?
Answer:  

Following the legal basis for Commission procurement, laid down in the Financial regulation and its implementing rules, the minimum time limit for the submission of the offers in case of Open procedure without pre-information notice is 52 calendar days in case of ordinary procedure, or 47 calendar days in case of electronic access to tender documents (tender publication on Internet). Please be kindly informed that the time limits run from the date of dispatch of the contract notice to the Publication Office, which in this case was 16 April. Therefore the deadline for submission of offers (14 June 2012), is in line with the rules set up in the Financial regulation.
Question 26  In riferimento al bando di gara n. ECFIN/R5/2012/001 Fornitura di attività di comunicazione, si richiede il seguente chiarimento:
nell’allegato VI “Elenchi di controllo dei documenti da presentare in relazione ai criteri di ammissibilità, esclusione, selezione e aggiudicazione”, punto b) Capacità tecnica, per il lotto 4 si richiede, al n. 16, di spiegare come l’offerente ha integrato nel suo lavoro i criteri sociali e ambientali, quali il marchio europeo di qualità ecologica, il rispetto delle norme OIL e il sistema EMAS.
In tal senso, è sufficiente la certificazione di qualità ambientale? Altrimenti, è possibile effettuare una dichiarazione in cui si sottolinea di avvalersi di fornitori che hanno integrato nel loro lavoro i criteri sociali e ambientali, quali il marchio europeo di qualità ecologica, il rispetto delle norme OIL e il sistema EMAS?

I prodotti devono essere eco-compatibili? Nell’elenco dei prodotti allegato al bando figurano alcuni prodotti per cui è difficile mantenere il requisito di eco-compatibilità (tipo chiavetta USB in metallo o puntatore laser in metallo argentato).

Free translation into EN: In reference to the tender notice no. ECFIN/R5/2012/001 Provision of communication activities, we require the following clarification: Annex VI "Checklist of documents to be presented regarding the criteria for eligibility, exclusion, selection and award", b) Technical capacity for lot 4, at no. 16 it is required to explain how the applicant has implemented in his work the social and environmental criteria, such as the European Eco-label, the observance of ILO standards and EMAS.

In this sense, is an environmental quality certification sufficient? Otherwise, can we make a statement which emphasizes the use of suppliers that have integrated social and environmental criteria, such as the European Eco-label, the observance of ILO standards and the EMAS?

Must the products be environmentally friendly? For some products of the list attached to the tender it is difficult to maintain the requirement of eco-compatibility (metal USB stick or silver metal laser pointer).
Answer:  

Please pay attention to the fact that the tenderer has not only to implement environmental criteria, but also social criteria in his products and work. Therefore, an environmental certification (covering only environmental criteria) will not be sufficient to prove e.g. observance of ILO rules. For these social, labour criteria separate certificates need to be submitted. In the absence of certificates, we can accept a declaration on honour from you and your suppliers.

Products must be environmentally friendly to the maximum extent possible.

Question 27 Lot 1 – CASE STUDY NO 1 (p.29)
It is requested to write 5000 characters on the EU response to the crisis. 
Does the word count include or exclude spaces?

Answer:  

Word counts are "characters with spaces".
Question 28 In your answers of May 16th you say to question 14, product 1.1 the spine shall be 24cm, Is it possible you mean 24mm?
Answer:  Yes, we mean 24 mm.
New!!! Updated on 29 May

Question 29 All questions refer to Lot 1.
1)      On p. 19 you specify that ‘All tenderers must provide proof of their economic capacity as follows: Lot 1: annual turnover of minimum EUR 1 500 000 in respect of the services related to the lot’. In case of a consortium, is this a level that each member company of the consortium have to reach individually or is it a combined total?

Answer:   It is the total of the bidder, be it a single company or a consortium in order to enable the Commission to make a consolidated assessment of the combined economic capacity.  

2)      In the event of a consortium, where two companies are responsible for two different parts, does there need to be one single project manager or can there be two project managers for the different parts? And, if the former is the case, does it matter which project manager of the two companies takes the lead?  

Answer: There can be two project managers but it is the candidate's choice to decide who will take the lead. Candidates are invited to read award criterion no.2 (page 26) which states that the Commission looks for maximum efficiency in terms of project management. 

3)      On p 25 you state that ‘the tenderer should provide references from the clients for all 8 projects, specifying whether they have been carried out in a professional manner and have been completed in full’.  What exactly do you mean by this? Would it be possible to draft a few standard lines and have the clients sign them? Or is it necessary to have a different reference from each client? Are contact details, so you can speak to the client in person and get a bespoke reference, sufficient? 
Answer: Please note that under point 1.4 (page 24) the following is stipulated: 'The technical and professional capacity of tenderers will be assessed on the basis of documents'. Therefore the Commission should be provided with the references from the clients themselves. Contact details alone will not be sufficient. Such references need to be provided under the form of a written document: a letter or a statement signed by the client by which he specifies whether the project was carried out in a professional manner and whether the project was completed in full (see page 25). The letter or statement should enable the Commission to identify the client.                                               
4)      In annex VI for lot 1 there is no mention of biographies of members of the team, while that is the case for the other lots. Should we include biographies of the team members, and if so, under which heading/section of the tender? 

Answer: As this was not requested, this will not be required. 

5)      On p.29 it is written that ‘the Tenderers must… translate the page for the leaflet on the EU’s response to the crisis into Latvian’. Is this translation necessary in the tender response or just a description of how this would be done? 

Answer: The translation is needed to demonstrate the tenderer's capacity to produce quality work in other Union languages.
New!!! Updated on 1 June

Question 30 Is it possible to receive or download in your website the 4 colours logo that we talking about in the Invitation to tender ?

Answer:  Please note that at this stage we do not expect candidates to incorporate already the Commission's logo. However, if the tendered chooses to do so it will not give him a comparative advantage over the other offers. Please find enclosed for your information, the Commission logo together with colour specifications.
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Question 31  All questions are for lot 1:
· As Cold Fusion is not the latest technology, the case studies we can provide where we used Cold Fusion date from more than four years ago. Are you happy to see more interesting and recent case studies without Cold Fusion technology or would you rather see older ones using this technology? Answer:  Except for case study # 3, the case studies don’t refer to a particular technology. However, if you refer to the general introduction, please provide your Cold Fusion experience also if it is less recent. In this case, also provide information on similar technologies you have used more recently.
· Related to above, under technical capacity requirements for lot 1 (table pages 24-25), you ask for experience with CFML. Would direct and proven experience in writing JAVA, CFML experience in the pre-Java versions, and .Net specialists in house who would be able to create libraries for use by ColdFusion be enough to fulfil that requirement? As with the previous question, it is difficult to prove recent use of CFML as it has been superseded by newer technologies.  Answer:  Yes, this is sufficient.
· Illustrations are very much a matter of taste and require a subjective judgement. Although we are aware that the Commission provides some guidelines, we would like if possible to get some more specific examples of illustrations and any further indications and guidance on what exactly should the style and “tone” of the illustrations be? This is particularly relevant for Case Study 2 on page 29. Answer: That depends on the creative approach you take. No more information can be given.
· On page 19 you ask for “certified balance sheets and profit and loss accounts of the past three years”. Do you want a full P&L and balance sheet for each of the past 3 years or will a top level summary do?  Answer: The full set of documents is required. 
· On page 19 you say that any sub-contractor responsible for 20% or more of the contract needs to prove their financial capability. Can you indicate whether you see printing being worth over 20% of lot one so that all tenderers who will be outsourcing this aspect need to include the details of their printer?  Answer:  It is the candidate's responsibility to estimate whether the printer (or any other outsourced activity / subcontracting) will exceed the 20% share and consequently to include proof of financial capability.
· On the budget spread-sheet for lot 1 there are no roles for those team members who we would see being responsible for providing the range of strategic communications advice outlined on page 23 of the tender documents. Can you suggest which actions, as outlined on page 23, you see being delivered against the roles outlined in the budget spread-sheet? Answer:  This assessment forms part of your offer. However, for some tasks, you may decide to choose "Independent expert /consultant".
Question 32  We would like to know what will be the best valuable option about the language on which the proposal should be sent. So that as we understand reading the Terms of References it could be sent in English or other official language of the EU.

In the case that we sent it in other official language of the EU, should it include an English translation?
Answer:  The offers may be submitted in any official language of the EU. However, in order to facilitate the evaluation process, the Commission would welcome receiving the offers in one of its working languages: English (or French or German).
Question 33
About question 24 published on May 22, 2012 related to the general price schedule for LOT 2

We have taken good note of your statement that the formula for cell F99 was changed to delete the extra C116. Please note that the C116 cell still appears twice in all updated budgets as published on your website today (31/05/2012). 

Could you please download the corrected version on your portal? 

Answer:  We apologize for the inconvenience. The corrected version of the general price schedule for Lot 2 is now published online.
Question 34
On page 25 of the specifications you state: “For web based projects, evidence of considerable experience in the field of web multimedia and content management should be proved. For this, experience with Documentum, XML, XSLT, Coldfusion Markup Language (CFML), Flex and Flash is indispensible. If not proved by the

eight projects mentioned under first bullet point, the above mentioned experience has to be proved by additional list of projects and references

from the clients.“

Our question: Must the references from the clients explicitly mention Documentum, XML, XSLT, Coldfusion Markup Language, Flex and Flash, or is it sufficient to provide client references for interactive projects as a whole, together with other evidence showing that the requested interactive and web development tools have been utilised within this projects?
Answer:  If not proved by the eight projects mentioned under first bullet point of Expertise and experience selection criteria, the above mentioned experience has to be proved by additional list of projects and references from the clients. The references from the clients do not need explicitly mention the different tools, provided that proof of this experience is provided along with the additional list of projects.
Question 35   In regard to the tender of the Directorate General for Economic and Financial Affairs (ECFIN/R5/2012/001) LOT 2, please find our further questions below: 
1. What does HDK mean (point 4.4 in the price list)? Answer:  HDK is the abbreviation of HDK Holz- und Kunststoffveredelung. Tenderers are invited to check on a web search engine more detailed explanation of this material.
2. Being aware of the fact that two brochures will be produced (A5 and A4), what is the quantity number of brochures that need to be produced per format and per stop? Answer:  For this case study, only one copy of each type of format of brochures per stop needs to be produced (1 copy of A5 brochure and 1 copy of A4 brochure per stop).
New!!! Updated on 5 June
Question 36   In the award criteria 1.4 for LOT 4 (starting at page 59 of tender specs), it is asked that « Tenderer must highlight the creativity by adapting and/or creating the 4 visual elements » which are described in the tenders specs. Here are the related questions :

1) At this stage of the procedure + when contract will be awarded, what is/will be the terms and conditions of copyrighting on these illustrations (payment of the artwork, ownership of artwork, ownership of copyright, copyright license,  credits  & moral rights, etc.) Answer:  Tenderers are invited to refer to the article 1.9 Use of the results of the draft framework contract for terms and conditions of copyrighting during the validity of the framework contract. The visual elements submitted in your offer are only meant to assess the creativity of the offer. They will not be used by the European Commission in its communication activities without a formal specific contract.
2) At this stage of the procedure, the designing (whether adapting or creating) of a complete map of the European Union for children in particular represents a significant investment. Will you consider only a sample/glimpse of the design along with a statement of intent in which the illustrator describes how he intends to finish the work if the contract is awarded ?  Answer:  We only expect from the tenderer a sample of the design along with a description in which the illustrator describes how he would intend to finish the work of the design of the map.
3) One of the visual element is a [small visual element with the European flag and the following text « European Commission, Directorate General for Economic and Financial Affairs »]. Can you confirm that creating such a new visual element will not infringe the actual EC Visual Identity guidelines ? Or should we understand that this visual element must be considered as purely fictional, disregarding the visual rule of the EC, only for the purpose of this tender ? Or should we simply use the actual EC visual identity to create this visual element ?  Answer:  The tenderer should understand that this visual element must be considered as purely fictional, disregarding the new common visual identity rule of the EC, in order to assess the tenderers creativity, for the purpose of awarding the framework contract. 
Question 37: We have some questions regarding lot 2, please find them below:

1. in the price quotation we should provide you with, the prices you asked are for RENTAL or BUYING the exhibition materials? for eg. when it is about touch screens, video screens, furniture, etc. we can even rent or buy. Answer:  The prices in the general price schedule should be purchase prices. However, the Commission also have a possibility to request to rent these elements at actual costs under specific contracts; in which case the tenderer will have a right to the management fee (a % of rental cost) – see point 4.1. of the general price schedule for lot 2.
2. each country exhibition staff including hostesses should be provided by tenderer or by the client? Answer:  For the case study of lot 2, the exhibition staff including hostesses should be provided by the tenderer.
3. same question for their training. Answer:  For the case study of lot 2, the training of the exhibition staff including hostesses should be provided by the tenderer.
4. there are some agreed maximum daily subsistence allowance per country containing also accommodation, breakfast and main meals, local travel (including taxis) and sundries for the staff? we had the in the Annex VII - Hotel ceiling. is this cost per day? what about transportation? where we will put in the budget the cost for the staff related to traveling, accommodation, etc? Answer: Tenderer's attention is drawn to the fact that daily allowances are not applicable under this call (see article I.3.4 of draft framework contract). Annex VII – Hotel ceiling provides the list of the hotel ceiling per day per country, to cover the accommodation expenses for the extra working meetings (on top of the kick-off meeting and up to three progress meetings, including travel and accommodation costs, if needed) or if the travel is necessary for the execution of the specific contract/project. Please note that supporting documents shall be provided. As concerns transport costs for the extra working meetings (on top of the kick-off meeting and up to three progress meetings, including travel and accommodation costs, if needed) or if the travel is necessary for the execution of the specific contract/project; these would be covered by the unit prices under travel and accommodation costs included in the general price schedules. For more details, please see page 5, last paragraph and page 14, bullet point Travel and accommodation costs of tender specifications.
5. is there a separate budget template for Copenhagen? Answer:  It is up to the tenderer to propose a template for both price estimates (cost breakdowns) asked under case study for lot 2, but the general price schedule for lot 2 may be used as a basis for it. For reasons of comparison, the same template for both price estimates (for three venues together and a separate one for Copenhagen) must be used.
6. how do you expect us to collect relevant info from each country for the editorial content of the materials in the stand? do you expect us to conduct research in each country or you will supply us info during the contract period? Answer:  It is not possible to specify this at this stage of the procedure. It will depend on the content and it may be different for each case. Therefore, it will be detailed in each specific request for services.
Question 38: We have a second round of questions for lot 2, please find them below:

in the general specification for tender, page 39, regarding this case studies, you mentioned that: "Tenderers must:

Give a detailed explanation of their proposed approach to all the stages of organising these
three exhibitions, namely:
- the logistical organisation of the event, including the choice of the exhibition room via
a preliminary visit on the site of the exhibition;
- update 30% of the content and graphic design of the panels and of both brochures
based on the existing exhibition;
- creation of the content and graphic design of the portable stand on the economic
situation of each host country;
- creation of the content and graphic design of the umbrella stand;
- translation of all the written material;
- production of all the materials;
- transport of the exhibition and stands;
- assembling the exhibition and stand;
- storage of empty boxes during the exhibition;
- disassembling the exhibition and stands;
- transport of the exhibition;
- storage of the exhibition and stands between each exhibition and at the end of the
exhibition during 90 days.
• submit a high quality picture in PDF Indesign format of both umbrella and portable
stands, which means:
- create the graphic and editorial part of the umbrella stand in English (EU map);
- create the graphic and editorial part of the portable stand on Germany in English;
- translate the portable stand on Germany into German;"
 this means that for submitting the offer for this tender we should prepare and develop all the above mentioned requirements? Answer:  Yes. Tenderers are invited to pay the attention to the difference in requested output: for which tasks only a detailed explanation of their proposed approach to all the stages of organising the three exhibitions is required (how to organise and manage these tasks) and for which tasks/products the creation of graphical and editorial deliverables and the translation into German is requested. 
We are asking you this because when it is about Award Criteria for this case study (pag. 37), there are other things that are awarded.
"5. Case study (60 points/ Pass mark: 40/60 with at least 50% pass mark at each
subcriterion)
Tenderers should demonstrate the quality and appropriateness of the approach adopted and
quality and creativity of the products delivered in the case study (scenario).
• provide a detailed timeline for each stage (see case study, part "Tenderers must") of the
organisation of the exhibition in the three countries (15 points maximum);
• indicate the human resource requirements for each stage (see case study, part "Tenderers
must") of organising the three exhibitions (15 points maximum);
• quality, creativity and attractiveness of graphical and editorial deliverables (30 points
maximum)
- graphic and editorial part of the umbrella stand in English (EU map) 12 points;
- graphic and editorial part of the portable stand on Germany in English 12 points;
- translation of the portable stand on Germany into German 6 points."
What we have to prepare in the end? What is the price schedule for Lot no. 2 referring to? To the general contract or to the case studies? Answer:  Tenderers have to include in their offer all the elements requested under case study and award criteria, in order to allow the contracting authority to evaluate their offer according to the award criteria. The prices proposed in the general price schedule for lot 2 will constitute the future contractual basis for the pricing of the specific contracts. In addition, tenderers attention is also drawn to the fact that the price estimate (two) covering all the tasks and work that the tenderer must carry out for the case study must also be submitted. These price estimates must truly reflect the proposed general price schedule – the prices proposed in the general price schedule and in the 2 price estimates (cost breakdowns) requested under the case study must be the same.
Beside this, it is not clear what is the concept of this kind of exhibitions. Do we have to come up with a general concept for all the stands / exhibitions the contract will be about and under this general umbrella concept to develop the graphic and the editorial part of the umbrella stand and for the portable one?

Answer:  Tenderers attention is drawn to the fact that this is a framework contract. It means that during the validity of the contract, there might be different needs, according to which, the contracting authority will launch specific contracts. It is possible, that in some cases the Commission will provide the concept of the exhibition, but for other specific contracts, to come up with a concept of the exhibition will be the task of the contractor.

At this stage of the procedure (the stage of submitting the offers), the tenderers are asked to provide their technical offer, in order to allow the contracting authority to evaluate the quality and creativity of the bid and to award the framework contract to the tenderer offering the best value for money according to the award criteria published in the tender specifications. At this stage of the procedure the tenderers are asked, besides providing the detailed description of their approach (please see page 39 of tender specifications), to also submit the graphic and editorial part of the umbrella and portable stands according to the background information given in the case study.

Question 39:  On page 59 you ask for creating the 4 visual elements mentioned below:

· Adapt the Euro symbol in a more attractive graph

· For children

· For adults

· A map of the European Union for children…

· Create small visual element with the European flag and the following text “European Commission, Directorate General for Economic and Financial Affiars”
Could you please give more information about what you are waiting from us?

Do you already have the element from the previous years? Or a url link?

Answer:  
The tenderer must highlight its creativity by adapting or creating the 4 visual elements mentioned in the tender specifications. 

The tenderer has to create:

· a map of the EU for children. We only expect from the tenderer a sample of the design along with a description in which the illustrator describes how he would intend to finish the work of the design of the map.
· A small visual element (such as a logo) with the European Flag and the following text "European Commission, Directorate-General for Economic and Financial Affairs". This visual element must be considered as purely fictional, disregarding the new common visual identity rule of the EC, only for the purpose of awarding this tender.

The tenderer has to adapt:
· the Euro symbol in a more attractive graph

· for children

· for adults

The tenderer may take here as an example of such a creative adaptation the euro symbol visible in the logo "One currency, many opportunities" (visible at the following link: http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/general/pdf/short_guide_euro_en.pdf) or on the existing map for children (visible at the following link: http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/general/pdf/united_in_diversity_-_poster_en.pdf)

Question 40: Following your reply to question 34, we have the following question: Could you specify how the requested experience (Documentum, XML, XSLT, Coldfusion Markup Language (CFML), Flex and Flash) should be proven? Can a signed contract or an approved final report serve as proof? What other proofs are possible?

Answer:  Proof of experience should clearly indicate what has been done and it should be easy to check. An approved final report is a good example of this.
Question 41: Regarding, Lot 1, Case study 1: Should a copy be provided for the single static mock-up of the HTML home page?

Answer:  Yes, as is indicated in the section "Tenderers must" on page 29.
Question 42: Betreft een vraag over perceel 4:

Op pg 65 van het bestek- Deel 1.3 ‘ selectiecriteria’ wordt van de inschrijver toelichting gevraagd mbt naleving van ILO-regels en EMAS-systeem.

Ons bedrijf heeft geen aansluiting bij EMAS maar volgt wel ISO26000 richtlijnen en is geëngageerd naar  milieuproblematiek door o.m. 196 zonnepanelen (investering in 2011), waste management, interne richtlijnen over papierverbruik, wagenpark met kleine wagen en lichte motoren (lage CO² uitstoot), Factory Audits in China die ook met deze aspecten rekening houden, enz…

Kan ons bedrijf deelnemen aan deze tender of is de niet-aansluiting bij EMAS sowieso een criteria voor uitsluiting?

Free translation into EN: Regarding a question on lot 4:

On page 65 of the tender specifications – part 1.3 selection criteria: the candidate is requested to give information regarding the compliance with ILO rules and the EMAS system.

Our company is not associated with EMAS but it is complying with the ISO26000 guidelines and is committed to the environmental issues via e.g. 196 solar panels (investment in 2011), waste management, internal guidelines on use of paper, car fleet with small cars and light engines (low CO2 emission), Factory audits in China which also take into account the aforementioned aspects, etc.

Could our company participate in this tender or is the non-affiliation with EMAS in any case a criterion for exclusion?

Answer:  No, the non-affiliation with EMAS is not considered to be a criterion for exclusion. However, regarding the requirement of the compliance with ILO rules and the EMAS system, please read the question/answer nr 26 above.
Question 43: In order to submit an adequate proposal to the bid ECFIN/R5/2012/001, please be so kind to answer few questions: 

- in section IV: Procedure, IV.3.6) Language(s) in which tenders or requests to participate may be drawn up: any EU official language. Please confirm that we can submit the proposal in Romanian language. Answer:  The offers may be submitted in any official language of the EU. However, in order to facilitate the evaluation process, the Commission would welcome receiving the offers in one of its working languages: English (or French or German).
- regarding lot 4, at Graphic proposals, you ask the tenderers to prepare 4 visual elements: 

1. euro symbol for children and adults

2. map

3. EU flag

· Please let us know that we need to prepare one visual for each of the 4 elements mentioned above, meaning a total of 4visuals, or four visuals for each elements, meaning a total of 16 visuals. Answer:  Tenderers are asked to prepare one visual for each of the 4 elements mentioned. Please note that that for the map, we only expect from the tenderer a sample of the design along with a description in which the illustrator describes how he would intend to finish the work of the design of the map.
New!!! Updated on 6 June

Question 44: Lot 2:

Dans l’étude cas, il est spécifié que l’exposition doit être montée dans 3 pays de l’UE : un de la zone Euro, un état membre de l’UE qui n’a pas encore adopté l’Euro et un pays candidat à l’adhésion.

Par ailleurs, il est demandé une adaptation de 30% de l’ensemble de l’exposition.
Question : L’adaptation doit-elle être faite une fois pour l’ensemble des 3 pays ou bien, doit-elle être faite à 3 reprises, donc entre chacun des 3 montages ?
Free translation into EN:  Lot 2: it is specified in the case study that the exhibition must be organised in three EU member states: one in the euro area member state, one in the EU member state which does not form part of the euro area and one in a candidate country. In addition, it is asked to adapt 30% of the totality of the exhibition. Question: Do we have to adapt the content once for the three countries together or do we have to adapt it three times, in between each of the 3 exhibitions?
Answer:  Tenderers are asked to update 30% of the content and graphic design of the panels and of both brochures based on the existing exhibition once, for the three countries together. Please also note that for this task, a detailed explanation of your proposed approach how you would organise and manage this task is requested.
Question 45: Lot 2. Our understanding regarding the prices to be filled in according to general price schedule is that we quote the price of the products (including printing and packaging) but not transportation. Transport will be estimated in second phase only with the short list, according to EU Commission request when receiving complete information on a specific order. Please confirm our understanding. 
Answer:  Yes, your understanding is correct. Transport price will be included in the reopening of competition whenever DG ECFIN wishes to place an order for promotional material.

Question 46: Please find below some questions referring to the above-mentioned call for tender, lot 3.

Q.1 Under point 8 of the tender specifications (p.7), it is said that ‘for all joint tenders, Tenderers must provide for all members participating in the tender the information required under point 11.1 (Part 2) “administrative proposal” and under point 1 (Part 3) “exclusion criteria”. In the case of an association (third bullet point), does this mean that all subcontractors presented in the offer need to provide you with these, or is it only the entity which signs the contract which needs to? Answer: Please see point 9 Subcontractors of tender specifications. In any bid, if the amount of the services executed by a subcontractor is equal to or exceeds 20% of the contract, the subcontractor must provide all the necessary documents for assessing the bid as stipulated in point 2 of Part 3 with regard to the exclusion criteria, the selection criteria and the award criteria.  Where those services represent less than 20% of the contract, documentary proof of the financial and economic capacity of the subcontractor shall not be required.
Q.2 If the answer is “all sub-contractors”), would this apply to individuals as well (e.g. a professor, for instance)? Answer: If the amount of the services executed by an individual is equal or exceeds 20% of the contract, then yes.
Q.3 Do we understand it right that in the case of an association, as there is only one entity that signs and assumes the responsibility of the contract, it is the only one that has to provide evidence of its technical and professional capacity, and in particular ‘proven professional experience of the company in the audiovisual field of at least three years’, with a list of six relevant audiovisual projects? Answer: In case of the association, one of the companies shall assume the total responsibility for the offer and the other companies shall be considered as sub-contractors (see point 8 at page 6 Joint tenders). The selection criteria (including professional experience of the company) will be assessed in relation to the combined capacity of the operators. If the leading company may prove this requirement alone, it is sufficient.

Q.4 If not, is it six projects in total for the association, or is it six projects per entity (e.g. six for the only entity signing the contract, and six per subcontractor)? Answer: If the leading company may not reply to this requirement alone, the six projects in total for the association should be provided (combined capacity).
Q.5 If the answer for Q.2 is ‘six projects per entity’, how do you deal with groupings of partners with different fields of specialty – which doesn’t necessarily involve audiovisual production? Answer:  The proven experience requested in the tender specification must relate to the audio-visual field (see point 1.5 page 46). As mentioned in answer to Question 4 above, the combined experience (in the audio-visual field) will be assessed. In other words, if one partner lacks the experience in the audio-visual field but the other partners prove this criterion with their combined experience, it is sufficient (see also answer to question 3 here above).
Question 47:  Lot 2: 
Case study page 38: "one portable stand, which will be devoted to the economic situation in the host country"
· Do we need to provide the content of the stand? Answer: Yes, tenderers are requested to submit a high quality picture in PDF Indesign format of one portable stand in English, which means to create the graphic and editorial part of the portable stand on Germany in English (please see page 39, under part "Tenderers must"). Please also note the specific award criteria for this task: 12 points maximum will be awarded for the quality, creativity and attractiveness of graphic and editorial part of the portable stand on Germany in English.
· Which is the main difference between "portable stand" and "umbrella stand"? Answer:  Tenderers are invited to check the pictures of the exhibition in Estonia http://ec.europa.eu/economy_finance/focuson/travelling_exhibition/focuson12850_en.htm and more specifically the following picture, in which the umbrella stand can be seen on the left, while the portable stand is the one with the text "Tere euro".
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Please note that different terms are used to describe an umbrella stand. It is also know as C34 stand; Pop-Up Stand or Nomadic Stand. Portable stand is the same as Roll-up stand. 
Tenderers are invited to check on a web search engine the images of how these stands look like. 
Case study page 39: "translate the portable stand on Germany into German"
· Do we need to provide the content and translate it to German? Answer: Yes, tenderers are requested to submit a high quality picture in PDF Indesign format of one portable stand in English, which means create the graphic and editorial part of the portable stand on Germany and translate the portable stand into German (please see page 39, under part "Tenderers must"). Please also note the specific award criteria for the translation task: 6 points maximum will be awarded for the translation of the portable stand on Germany into German.  
The tenderers should not forget that, in addition to this graphic creation, they also have to give a detailed explanation of its proposed approach to create such files and translate the text (as indicated at page 39 of tender specifications).

New!!! Updated on 8 June

Question 48: Lot 2
1) Could you please specify what exactly position 1.1. of the price list includes: Answer: under position 1.1 the following tasks should be included: Evaluation of different meetings, feasibility of projects, technical meeting with stakeholders and similar tasks (which also includes, for example, meeting with the contact person of the premises where the stand will be set-up; or a meeting with third parties, etc.)
a. What does “evaluation of meetings” mean? Writing meeting minutes, giving   feedback after the visit of a possible venue? Answer: Yes 
b. Does “technical meeting with stakeholders” mean for example meeting with the contact person of the premises where we will set-up the stand or a meeting with third parties? Answer: Yes 
c. Does it include kick-off/preparatory meetings with DG ECFIN or only the evaluation of these meetings? Answer: There is no specific position for the costs related to the kick-off/ up to three progress meetings in the general price schedule, as these costs will not be paid/reimbursed separately (please see page 5, last paragraph of tender specifications for more details).
2) 4.22 and 4.23: Video Screen: Does this mean the price per unit/day (taking into account the explanatory notes for the table) or the price per unit/stop? Answer: The price is the purchase price of the product and it's a price per unit. Your question probably refers to rental option of video screens (please see explanation under point 4 and 4.1 in the general price schedule). In this case, please consider that the renting costs of the technical equipment are considered as actual costs and according to the explanatory note nr. 2), these costs are subject to the specific coefficients based on the rental's length.
3) Certain measures (e.g. transportation of the exhibition via ferry boat), production of an umbrella stand are not explicitly mentioned in the price list. Can we nevertheless include them in the budget for the case and is there a certain position where you want us to include them?  Answer: Umbrella stand is mentioned in the price list, in two different categories: the structure on one side at point 4.2: " Semi-circular aluminium structure consisting of several panels, magnetic strips (measuring approximately 2.40 m x 3.30 m) (packaging included, also for the other items on the stand)"

and the printed panel itself under point 4.7 
As concerns transport costs, you may add them to the two price estimates (cost breakdowns) asked under the case study, but not to the general price list for lot 2. As explained on page 34 of tender specifications, transport will usually be made by road. However, when other means of transport are necessary, tenderers are expected to identify the means which represent the best value for money. The choice of another means of transport (by water or by air), must be submitted to and approved by the European Commission and will be repaid on real costs basis requiring documented justification.
Question 49: Nous avons listé quelques questions concernant le lot 4 de l’appel d’offre précité.
1. Lorsque vous parlez de « cuir » pour l’article 1.11, s’agit-il de vrai cuir ou pouvons-nous partir sur du simili cuir ? 

2. Même question pour l’objet 3.15

3. Lorsque vous demandez pour le point 2.2 que le stylo bille sur enfant soit « with euro sign », s’agit-il juste d’une impression ou d’autre chose ? Qu’entendez-vous par sans risques pour les enfants ? A quelles normes doit-il répondre ?

4. Pour les bonbons, doivent-ils être conditionnés de manière particulière ou en vrac ?

Free translation into EN: We have some questions regarding lot 4 of this call for tender.

1. When speaking about "leather" for product 1.11, is it meant to be a real leather or can we use imitation leather? Answer: You may use imitation leather
2. The same question regarding product 3.15 Answer: As this product falls within category B and is intended for a limited audience (see also Annex I of lot 4 page 55), real leather should be used for product 3.15 (briefcase).
3. When asking for product 2.2. Ballpoint pen (for children) "with euro sign", is it supposed to be simply impression or other technique?  What is understood to be risks for children? To which requirements it has to reply? Answer: The Euro sign should indeed be printed on the ballpoint pen. The pen must be child safe, meaning that the pen has to be conceived in a way that no parts of it (including its ink) represent a risk for children. For example, the ink can not contain any toxic solvent. Other example: if the proposed pen contains a cap, the candidate must ensure that the pen is compliant with the international standard ISO 11540 which requires that a child can still breathe in case he accidently swallows the cap.
4. The bonbons, do they have to be packaged individually or in bulk? Answer: Each bonbon has to be wrapped separately in order to allow to be distributed individually. However, for the purpose of delivery and transport, bonbons should also be packaged in bulk. See also answer to question 19.
Question 50 “if an individual represents less than 20% what should s/he provide?“

Answer: It depends on the status and his role within your offer. If the individual will be a subcontractor, whose tasks represent less than 20 % of the contract, he/she is not obliged to provide evidence of his/her economic and financial capacity. In any case a clear description of his role will be essential. If requested in the tender specifications, a cv might be required. 

Question 51 Both questions refer to Lot 1.
1) We have experienced some difficulties in accessing some of the administration forms on the links contained in the ITT (e.g. the legal entity form in Annex IV).  Is it a requirement to use these exact forms or are we able to provide information in a word document? Answer: It is indeed a requirement to use the standard administrative forms of the Commission. Please find hereafter the correct link: http://ec.europa.eu/budget/contracts_grants/info_contracts/legal_entities/legal_entities_en.cfm
Our apologies for any inconvenience caused.
2) We have found the type face PFSquareSansPro that you require for the tender on your website as a download. (Page http://ec.europa.eu/ipg/design/templates/commission/index_en.htm
Link http://www.cc.cec/home/europa-info/documents/font/pfsquaresanspro_font.zip). However the link is broken. Please advise on how you would like us to proceed. Answer: We re-checked the link on Friday 8 June and it works well. Please retry. If you still have this problem, please re-contact us again at ECFIN-CFT-COMMUNICATION-2012@ec.europa.eu.
Question 52 With regard to the above-mentioned tender procedure, we have another request for clarification:

1. Is it necessary that the same item in General Price Schedule has the same price for different Lots, e.g. “Graphic designer” in Lot 1 and Lot 2? Answer: No, the prices for similar items in different lots may be different. However, tenderers are kindly reminded that the prices in the General price schedules and in the price estimates for the case studies for the same items within one lot have to be the same.  
2. In General price Schedule Lot 2: For the items 1.9 “Camera operator” and 1.10 “Video montage and realisation” is the equipment to be included? Answer: Yes
New!!! Updated on 11 June

Question 53 Could you please answer the following request for important clarification related to the formulas in the general price schedule for LOT 2.

For line 8.1 We are surprised that the line rises automatically to close to 2 million euro even before we indicate any percentage in cell C297. As this happens automatically, aren’t some cells counted twice in the global total of the general price schedule in this case? Or even multiplied by 100? Answer: No, cells are not doubled or multiplied by 100, it is an issue of formatting of this cell: a "%" sign should be added for the relevant cells under column C. We have included it in the cell formatting and the updated price lists are now published online. Please download the latest version and use it for your price offer. When filling in the price schedules, please also pay attention that for all cells requesting a percentage instead of a number, a percentage sign appears next to your offered price in the column C.
Do you confirm that the financial offers of the tenderers will be evaluated based on the unit prices instead of the totals, in case there are some mistakes in these formulas which have a significant impact on the total of the price schedule? Answer: In case there are still mistakes in the formulas, the Commission will recalculate the total amount manually, and will take into consideration your offered unit prices, multiplied by the relevant coefficient. The Commission commits itself to inform each candidate of any correction it will make due to an error that occurred on the Commission's side.
For line 4.1 We understand that this management fee is a percentage applied by the contractor on the real value of the service (that is on the total value invoiced to a provider), for management of the services provided by this same provider. Is this correct? Answer: The management fee under point 4.1. of the general price schedule is expressed as a percentage applied by the contractor to the total rental costs of technical equipment incurred.
Question 54 We have one last question on lot 1, on the General price schedule. The table below is not very clear for us regarding two points: 

· From where and to where is the equipment going to be transported? Rates change whether it is from mainland Europe to the UK, or within Europe etc. Is there a way to have more precise indications on that? Answer: It is difficult to foresee, as it will depend on each specific request for services. As a general rule, transport will usually be made by road, therefore at this stage, tenderers are asked to propose their prices in the general price schedule on the basis of transport by road. However, if and when other means of transport will be necessary, tenderers will be expected to identify the means which represent the best value for money. The choice of another means of transport (by water or by air), must be submitted to and approved by the European Commission and will be repaid on real costs basis requiring documented justification.
· Courrier services often base their price on weight, rather than on the volume of the material to be delivered, but in the table there are only indications for the volume. How can we proceed?  Answer: The parameter for this lot is volume in m³ as this is the most common and best known parameter to be used for this lot.
	 
	14.   Transporting equipment (these prices are understood to be all inclusive; return costs may not be added) 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	14.1
	between 0 and 5 m³
	 
	€/km
	40
	                       -     
	€

	14.2
	between 5.1 and 25 m³
	 
	€/km
	40
	                       -     
	€

	14.3
	between 25.1 and 50 m³
	 
	€/km
	40
	                       -     
	€


Question 55 Lot 2, Position 4.22 and 4.23: Do you mean a projector with a screen or do you mean a LCD wall (made of small LCD screens)? Answer: We mean a projector with a screen (+ metallic frame)
Question 53 We have some questions, please find them below:
1. Lot 1, Case study no. 4:

Questions:
1. Is there any limitations in terms of social media tools, information, images, associations we should consider. If yes, what would these be? Answer: The limitations are given in point a) and depend on your own evaluation. 
2. Do you already use certain social media platforms? If yes, please exemplify. Answer: So far ECFIN only uses a Twitter account which you easily find linked to on the ECFIN website homepage. https://twitter.com/#!/ecfin
3. What are the web publishing constrains? Answer: Please note there is no reference to "web publishing constraints" in case study n° 4. 
4. Is there any mandatory social media tool/platform that should be used/followed? Answer: No
5. Is English language the official and the only language used in communication during the implementation of the social media strategy? Answer: The answer to this can be part of your critical analysis.
6. Should we consider official intervention in the forum dialogs? Answer: The answer to this can be part of your critical analysis.

2. pag. 5 of the tender document you mentioned: The contract manager must be able to carry out these tasks in English and French.

in the specific lots documentation, you asked English fluency and or/ French. (pag. 36, 46)

Question: What is the right understanding? Answer: While page 5 refers to the general specification for contract manager applicable to all 4 lots, the specific lots documentation may differ from one lot to another (page 36 relates to requirements for lot 2, while page 46 –  to lot 3).  
3. pag. 5 of the tender document:

The unit prices in the general price schedule must include all costs associated with provision of the services, including all aspects of coordination of the contract, project management (including costs of contract manager, project manager, project leader etc), coordination with the various parties involved, working meetings (kick-off and up to 3 progress meetings, including travel and accommodation costs, if needed), planning, monitoring and reporting, training of the Contractor's staff, overheads, insurance, telecommunications etc incurred directly or indirectly by the Contractor in performance of the tasks entrusted to him. The aforementioned associated costs will therefore not be defined separately in the General price schedule. 

Question: Where these costs will be included? In which unit price? There is a staff chapter in the general price schedule but this chapter does not include costs of contract manager, project manager, project leader, coordination, training, etc. So in which unit price we should include all the project management and coordination costs? Answer: There is no specific unit price for project management and coordination costs, nor for project manager, project leader, coordination, training, etc. It is considered that these costs should be funded by the tenderers. Tenderers are free to divide these costs within all the other units in the price schedule, if they consider it necessary.

4. pag. 7 of the tender document:

Subcontractors - in any bid, if the amount of the services executed by a subcontractor is equal to or exceeds 20% of the contract, the subcontractor must provide all the necessary documents for assessing the bid as stipulated in point 2 of Part 3 with regard to the exclusion criteria, the selection criteria and the award criteria.

Question: For the award criteria what type of document should the subcontractor submit?

Answer: The subcontractor must make sure that all information is given on his identity, roles, activities and responsibilities as well as a clear specification of the volume/proportion that is being subcontracted. A document (letter of intent by each subcontractor) should be added stating the subcontractor's unambiguous undertaking to collaborate with the candidate if the latter wins the contract and the extent of the resources that the subcontractor will put at the candidate's disposal for the performance of the contract.
5. pag. 14:

Travel and accommodation costs: The attention of Tenderers is drawn to the fact that
travel costs, if necessary for the execution of the specific contract/project, will not be
considered as reimbursable expenses, but take the form of a unit price according to travel
zones (A to D) (see general price schedules in Annex I). Depending on where the service is
performed they are subdivided into four zones: for Brussels and up to 250 km around
Brussels no separate price for travel costs is foreseen; three prices are foreseen for places
within a radius of 250 – 1000 km of Brussels, within a radius of 1000 – 2500 km of Brussels
and within a radius of more than 2500 km from Brussels. If needed, the calculation will be
verified on the basis of mathematical zone delimitation on the map (straight line GPS
distances).

Question: What are the 3 prices foreseen for  foreseen for places within a radius of 250 – 1000 km of Brussels, within a radius of 1000 – 2500 km of Brussels and within a radius of more than 2500 km from Brussels? do we have to calculate them and based on what? Answer: Tenderers are asked to give the unit price for each travel zone. In case the services will be required within one of these three travel zones, tenderers will be paid for their travel according to the unit price proposed in the general price schedule and not according to the real costs of the travel. It is up to the tenderer to propose the price, based on the calculation he considers necessary.
6. pag. 18:

Tenderers (legal entities, persons who have powers of representation, decision-making or
control over them) are informed that, should they be in one of the situations mentioned in:
- the Commission Decision of 16.12.2008 on the Early Warning System (EWS) for the use
of authorising officers of the Commission and the executive agencies (OJ, L 344, 20.12.2008, p. 125)3, or- the Commission Regulation of 17.12.2008 on the Central Exclusion Database – CED (OJ L 344, 20.12.2008, p. 12)4,their personal details (name, given name if natural person, address, legal form and name and given name of the persons with powers of representation, decision-making or control, if legal person) may be registered in the EWS only or both in the EWS and CED, and communicated to the persons and entities listed in the above-mentioned Decision and Regulation, in relation
to the award or the execution of a procurement contract or a grant agreement or decision.

Question: What does this mean for the company? Do we have to apply to something before the submission of the offer? Answer: As explained on page 16 point 1 'exclusion criteria', tenderers will not be considered if they fall in any of the exclusion criteria. In addition, should they be in any of the described situations, they will be registered in the relevant databases as adopted by the Commission Regulations (see the weblinks to the Regulations given on page 18 bottom of the page). Should your company be awarded the framework contract, you will be asked to provide us with the necessary proof that you are not in any of the situations described under point 1 (page 16). The type of evidence (documents and certificates) to be provided can be found on page 17 last paragraphs.
7. pag. 23:

The current EC CWCMS is Documentum. Other technologies currently used include XML, XSLT, Coldfusion Markup Language (CFML), open source content management systems, Flex and Flash.
Question: Does this mean that we have to work in all the technologies mentioned above? It is mandatory? Answer: The choice of technologies will depend on the individual specific contract but tenderers must be able to provide services in the mentioned technologies and keep abreast of technological developments in the sector. 
 

8. pag. 25:

For web based projects, evidence of considerable experience in the field of web multimedia and content management should be proved. For this, experience with Documentum, XML, XSLT, Coldfusion Markup Language (CFML), Flex and Flash is indispensible. If not proved by the eight projects mentioned under first bullet point, the above mentioned experience has to be proved by additional list of projects and references from the clients.

Question: Do we have to prove our experience in dealing with all the formats mentioned above? Answer: Yes, as it has been stated.
 

9. pag. 25

Language abilities - Proof of capacity to draft content in native-level English and French.

Question: How we prove the capacity to draft content in native-level EN or FR? Answer: It is left to the tenderer how to prove this capacity clearly and fully.
10. pag. 46
Proven expertise and experience of the team proposed by the Tenderer
• Contract manager — 7 years minimum as a senior consultant
• Project leader/manager —7 years minimum as a project leader/project manager
• All others specific professions mentioned under Chapter 3 Price schedule (1.Staff) – 3
years minimum in their specific profession
The Project leader must have a good understanding of European Economic and Financial
Policy. All the members of the team who are in contact with the Commission services must
possess excellent communication level in English: C1 or C2 (Common European Framework of Reference for Languages of the Council of Europe, http://www.coe.int/t/dg4/linguistic/CADRE_EN.asp ) or equivalent.
Evidence: professional and linguistic qualifications of those of the persons responsible for
providing the services or carrying out the tasks. For contract manager, project
leader/manager, project assistants, film director and production director the Europass
curriculum vitae format (http://europass.cedefop.europa.eu/europass/preview.action?locale_id=1 )shall be filled in
and signed.

Question: How we will prove that all the other specific professions mentioned under Chapter 3 Price schedule (1.Staff) have 3 years minimum in their specific profession? Do we have to provide CVs for all the positions mentioned in the 1.Staff chapter of the budget? How we will demonstrate C1 or C2 language levels? Do we have to demonstrate it for all the staff?  CVs should be provided only for contract manager, project leader/manager, project assistants, film director and production director? 
Answer: You can provide us with a signed declaration attesting that 1) all other (than contract manager and project leader/manager) specific professions mentioned under Chapter 3 Price schedule (1.Staff) has the required 3 years minimum in their specific profession and 2) those who are in contact with the Commission services (and only those) must possess excellent communication level in English: C1 or C2 (Common European Framework of Reference for Languages of the Council of Europe: http://www.coe.int/t/dg4/linguistic/CADRE_EN.asp ) or equivalent.

Regarding the CVs in Europass curriculum vitae format (http://europass.cedefop.europa.eu/europass/preview.action?locale_id=1 ), they are required to be filled in and signed in case of contract manager, project leader/manager, project assistants, film director and production director.

